TP \ ey

County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

MINUTES
BOX ELDER COUNTY COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 13, 2024

The Board of County Commissioners of Box Elder County, Utah met in an Special Commission
Meeting at the County Courthouse, 01 South Main Street in Brigham City, Utah at 6:00 p.m. on
November 13, 2024. The following members were present:

Lee Perry Chairman

Boyd Bingham Commissioner

Marla R. Young Clerk
Excused: Stan Summers Commissioner

The prayer was offered by Chairman Perry.
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Clerk Marla Young.

ATTACHMENT NO. 1 - AGENDA

ATTACHMENT NO.2 - Public Hearing Attendance Sheet

Presentation on Box Elder County Property Tax Increase for County General Fund-Shirlene

Larsen

Chairman Perry explained there are two separate funds being discussed today in the hearing. It
is for a tax increase for the General Fund and for the Library Fund.

Chairman Perry gave a history of the taxes on his own home and explained that when property
values have gone up the tax rate has gone down. He stated the median salary within Box Elder
County is $72,000.00. The median range for county employees is $54,000.00. The county is not
paying excessive salaries. The county has tried to cut costs by doing our own work such as
laying the groundwork for projects to bridges and roads. Last year the county saved over
$300,000.00 by having the road department fence the jail. The county has used ARPA funds to
offset costs to the county. He spoke about the DMV office that it is a state function and the
county loses money, but they do it to provide services to the county. He said there has been a
need to increase the number of attorneys because of public safety issues. He reported the county
is down twelve deputies and it is difficult to find good deputies because the county still pays less



County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

than other areas. He said they are always looking for ways to cut costs. The county is not
allowed to have a rainy day fund.

Auditor Shirlene Larsen presented the trends of the revenues and expenditures over the last ten
years. She stated the proposal is to increase the General Fund by 21%. She said the county
budgets for the worst case scenario and often under spends the budget. She said the biggest
expenses fall within public safety and the jail. She explained the county collects taxes for all the
entities and disperses them to various entities. The county does not tell the entities how to spend

their money.

Presentation on Box Elder County Library Property Tax Increase-Shirlene Larsen

Auditor Shirlene Larsen presented information about County Library Services. She stated the
bookmobile makes 95 community stops every two weeks. It serves approximately 68 people per
day and 1,088 people per month. There are 217 books checked out per day, approximately 3,475
books per month. They deliver to 4 schools that do not have libraries of their own, and have
about 1,950 family accounts. Only those people in the service area pay for the bookmobile. She
explained the taxes would be $6.33 more per year based on a home valued at $488,000.00 and
$11.50 per year for a business. She stated the trucks are old and are very expensive to repair, so
they are hoping to purchase a new truck.

Public Hearing for Proposed Property Tax Increase for Box Elder County-Shirlene Larsen

Public Hearing for Proposed Property Tax Increase for Box Elder County Library-Shirlene
Larsen

Bryan Baron of Brigham City stated he opposes the increase. He said he realizes that property
taxes do not automatically increase year after year along with inflation so the county has to
increase property taxes or the county loses money. He said he recognizes the problem but 22% is
a huge amount to put on your residents. He proposed the county take a different approach. He
gave an example of Ogden City. They do a tax increase every year of around three percent and
have found that the residents are much happier. He gave an example of the Weber 911 district
breaking up their increase over several years and after the first two years, they realized they
didn’t need to keep increasing.

John Hurd of Mantua stated he is on a fixed income. His property taxes have gone up
considerably year after year for many years. The rates that go to the county are based on property
tax values. He believes there is a windfall because of the growth in the county and it should be



County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

taken into account for these additional expenses. He said he has a garden spot that the taxes are
half as much as his home. He has been trying to work with the county and they have indicated
they have a law to follow. He said the piece of property is Y5 of an acre and he pays $1,700.00
per year and it is only used for a garden spot. It would be beneficial to have an agricultural
ability so it would not be taxed so high. He commented on the capital projects for 2025 and
compared them to prior years. He said he disagrees with the amount proposed as he feels we are
taxed to death. He wished the Town Councils and the County Commission would listen to the

public and look at how we spend money.

Douglas Powell stated his taxes in 2008 on his farm were $671.00 and in 2023 his taxes were
$2,035. We all, each of us here, feel the effects of inflation. Enough is enough. He asked if they
expect an open checkbook all the time. He said he believes they have to have a certain amount
for the roads and the sheriff’s department. He said, regarding the other things, they need to cut
back. He said he gets by on a lot less money than what the county wages are. Everyone has to cut
back. He said he thinks the county might have a spending problem, not a revenue problem.

DeAnna Hardy of Brigham City stated the Box Elder Committee of Liberty opposes the 2025
tax increase. The people are already struggling and the increase will cause additional harm and
injury. The government does not have a revenue problem, it has a spending problem. I have
been asking for fourteen years for the government to reduce its size and cost, only to be
continually ignored. She said she is sure this year will be no different. She said she has been told
that the Commission does not need to listen to her. There are many programs that are
unconstitutional and should be cut and returned to the free market system. The government
should be focusing on the sheriff, jail, roads, landfill, elections, and a few administrative
procedures. Our elections should go back to in person voting at our local precincts with paper
ballots. The government will eventually run out of other people’s money. This is what happens
when our government participates in socialism, fascism, and marxism programs. It was reported
that the county hasn’t increased taxes for a while, but the property values have skyrocketed so
you have been receiving more revenue. Fees have also increased. It is immoral for our property
to be taxed. We spend our whole lives paying for our property, but never will own our property
because of the theft of property taxes. In 2016 a new municipal tax was put onto the citizens 1n
the unincorporated areas. The will of the people said no, but the Commissioners did not listen
and passed the new tax. In 2009 and 2010, the County Commissioners were making $41,321.00
which is a lot for a part-time position. If the new tax is approved the salary is $66,667.00. The
elected officials are receiving a salary increase every year at the expense of the citizens. When 1S
enough enough? We need representatives to serve who want to reduce the size and cost of

government.



County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

Joe Shinkle of Corinne stated he has been 1o a lot of these types of meetings and asked if they
have already made their mind up and will their voices even matter.

Josh Ripley of Garland stated there is no question the fat needs to be trimmed. The people are
tired of the county taking from us arbitrarily. We have no say in how much the county takes
from us with no accountability. The people want to have a say in what is being spent. The
people are tired of being taxed. He commented on the wages of the elected officials. He said you
work for us and the people are tired and angry. If this increase goes through, everybody here
vote these people out. They are spending our money and they keep taking.

Carl Knighton of Brigham City stated he echoes what others are saying and he is really ticked
off. He feels he is being nickeled and dimed to death. We are all dealing with inflation and
increased costs. We don’t get to vote ourselves more money. We have to do without or make do
with what we have. In looking at his personal taxes, having lived here for a short time, have
increased from $1,300.00 to $2,000.00 in a five year period. It is really frustrating and he feels
like he is being ignored.

Paul White of Perry stated he also disagrees on the tax increase. He looked over the slides
given at the Commission meeting regarding the 2025 budget. He said it seems like there is fluff
on some line items. He encouraged the Commission to take a deeper dive into certain line items
and trim things out of the budget. It is the same as a household budget. He wants to golf every
day but can’t afford it. If you take a deeper dive into the line items you may find money that is
needed and not take it out of the pockets of the citizens.

Ryan Petit of Brigham City stated he is a hard working husband and father and provides for his
family on one income. Every time people voice their opinion on a tax increase, it is ignored. He
stated in a family household you have to go without. He gave examples of ways a household has
to cut back. People say if you are dissatisfied, then vote them out. There is very little
competition. No one wants to do the work to unseat the politicians if they are unsatisfied. We as
a community need to look into unseating and getting people to run for office.

Carla Moser of Willard stated the Box Elder Committee of Liberty opposes the 2025 tax
increase for the bookmobile. She said they petition the Commission to cut this program and
move it to the free market system where the citizens will no longer be forced to pay for other
peoples books. Let the people keep their own money and buy their own books that they approve
of and choose. The people should not be forced to pay for a government bookmobile program
that they do not use. The government is also using our tax payer dollars to purchase immoral



S S—

sy \2

County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

books and books that distort or rewrite our history. It is apparent the public libraries are being
used to misinform and lead the people astray by these types of books. The Box Elder Committee
of Liberty believes in education and reading good books but should not be forced or funded by

we the people.

Blair Reese of Perry stated he understands they have a job to do and that you feel that you
deserve more for it. He does not feel the bookmobile is a good program. He feels none of the
reasons are a good reason to raise taxes. He said he is a systems engineer manager, basically a
rocket scientist, but it doesn’t take one of him to know that as property values go up, so does
income and revenue. That means you are getting more and you don’t need to be taking more. We
have all been hit by inflation and have problems. He thinks they should trim the fat in the budget
and find a way to make it better. He said, if not, he’s sure they will find a way to get them out
the next time. He said if they push this through, he will be running against them. He said he is
responsible for multiple million dollar cost accounts on a daily basis and he knows he can do

their job better.

Jeff Hardy of Brigham City stated he wanted to touch on a couple of sacred cows where the
county spends a lot of money. He talked about the county fair and the facilities. He feels they
could cut the bookmobile, it has been questioned for years. If we are only putting out 3,400
books and spending $534,000.00 on the Bookmobile program, that is $154.00 per book. He said
they have put money into broadband and some other areas that they could cut some comers. He
has sat on a lot of boards over the years both nationally and locally and sometimes you just have
to cut corners. He said maybe some of what is needed to pay the deputies should come from the
pay of the Commissioners instead of bumping their wage up each year. He said when his uncle
was a County Commissioner the pay stayed pretty steady for years, but over the last ten years the
Commissioners have received a bump every year. Being a part-time position, he feels they don’t
need a cost of living increase. There are places to cut and he trusts them to do it.

Ben Soholt of Brigham City stated he appreciates the time the Commissioners put into the
county to help it run smoothly. He appreciates the difficulty they are having with the budget. He
says he understands that when home prices go up the county decreases the tax rate. He said
since he bought a home in 2020, the taxes have gone up 33%. It is ridiculous and he cannot
afford it. Inflation has hit everyone. A 22% tax is too much. We need to wait until we have the
means to do it. The school board bond was resoundingly rejected. You can not squeeze more
money out of those that can not afford it. He said they should do a little each year instead of a big
increase. He said he intends to approach those at the state level to allow for a rainy day fund.



County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

Julie Shinkle of Corinne asked the Commission to consider that there are senior citizens,
elderly people, that can not afford any increases in property tax. She spoke of her 96 year old
veteran father who is stressed about how he can afford a $1600.00 property tax. There are a lot of
people on fixed incomes. She said the Bookmobile is a waste. She has watched it come to
Corinne and no one ever goes to it.

Lloyd Wood of Elwood stated his sentiments are like the others who have spoken. He said in
2019 the county portion of taxes was $154.00 and now up to $273.00. That is a pretty good jump
in a five year period. He has heard that Box Elder County is the third fastest growing county in
the state which means to him that if it has doubled in five years it should have doubled the tax
revenues. He feels it is too much of an increase for this period in time.

Marvin Neff of Willard stated somehow we the people have forgotten the founding principles
of our country. No taxation without representation. Instead, we have accepted with blind
obedience the burden of unconstitutional property taxes levied upon us by our municipalities.

Municipal taxation is unconstitutional and we have been hoodwinked into believing otherwise.
The Constitution Tax Origination Clause states all bids, all bills for raising revenue shall
originate in the House of Representatives meaning only representatives can levy taxes not
municipal budget writing bureaucrats. The supreme court since 1973 has had a hands off policy
that has left no controlling legal authority in place to speak on behalf of the constitution. So with
the cat away, the mice did play, writing state code without constitutional constraint. Now this
neglect has come home to roost severely eroding household finances. He said he knows they are
not going to repeal property taxes but he said to live within our means, reduce your wages, get
rid of the Bookmobile, do not increase taxes, and live on a budget like the rest of us.

John Kaiserman of Thatcher said he thinks it is pretty bold to propose a 20% tax increase in
one fell swoop. We are not running a red budget but a huge budget. We are trying to ride a ship,
but we do not need to build a new ship. A 20% increase is way out of line and he hopes they will
rethink it.

Corby Adams of South Willard said when her kids were younger she loved the idea of the
Bookmobile, but they didn’t use it as often as she thought. She said the information given stated
that there were almost 2,000 family accounts. She would like to see how many actually use the
Bookmobile. She said she is not saying she is in favor of canceling the library system for the
county but there is money to be saved in investing in technology. Using an online library system
has got to be cheaper than buying new books and new trucks. She said using technology that we



- ey

County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

have and investing in an online system would be a better use of our money than things that are

becoming obsolete.

John McClellan of Garland stated his water and sewer was just raised nearly 25%. It is hard to
choke down on a fixed income. He asked about growth and was told that growth is good
because we need a tax base. Clearly the tax base is not sustainable. Otherwise, we would be in
fat city with all the homes and apartments going up. He spoke about impact fees and
infrastructure. He said he asked about the inland port being built down the road from him. He
GRAMA requested a report and found out they came in with a 75/25 split on the tax incentive.
75% was given to the large business for 25 years. He said they built a new road that will bring
several trucks and taxpayers will be having to fix the road. The numbers just don’t wash. To ask
for another 20% tax is unbearable and he can’t see how they expect the people in the community
to come up with it. Someone needs to balance the checkbook and cut somewhere.

Bruce Royer of Brigham City stated he is representing his 93 year old mother-in-law. He
spoke of other taxing entities with an example of two years ago their tax bill had a 67% increase
and he spoke opposing it and they decreased it to 33% but came back with another 33% the next
year. There are ways to try to compensate for the tax increases, but invariably you get us every
time. A 22% increase is crazy. He is on a fixed income and his mother-in-law is on a fixed
income. Taxes are already way too high. He encouraged the Commission to look at the numbers

and consider everyone.

Daniel Farnes stated he works for the county in the Auditor’s office. He said he has a unique
perspective and knows how the county is managing some things and has grave concerns. The
taxes don’t happen in a vacuum as most people say. It’s not just the county that is going up.
There are other entities going up which makes it hard. Over the last couple of years, it has been
good for the employees as wages have gone up and projecting 20% in the next year for some
employees which is a lot compared to the general public. The tax payers who are paying for this
are not getting that. He finds that difficult to swallow. The biggest expense to the county is the
labor costs. We need to manage that better. If we are going to fail to do that, he does not support
raising the taxes. He thanked the Commission for what they do and knows it is a hard decision to
make. He said he knows we need a tax increase, but proposed more like 10%. He said he knows
the budget and labor can be managed better and be more accurate with our budgeting.



County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

Corey DeMain of Honeyville said it takes him ten years to get a 20% increase and over the last
fifteen years that 2% increase he gets a year, all of it goes to higher taxes, higher medical costs,
and inflation. He stated that especially for those who are on a fixed income it is difficult. By the
time he retires, he feels he will be taxed right out of his home. He understands there are needs
and he is willing to pay for the things we use, but if we need something and can not afford it, it
needs to be put off until we can or do it at a more reasonable rate. He said they use the
Bookmobile a lot for his granddaughter and thinks it is a great program. For a 20% increase, he
would be willing to drop it. He said maybe it is the timing. The last four years have been brutal

to everybody.

Kevin Ekins of Thatcher stated if they enjoy being a County Commissioner, it 1s pretty clear
what they have to do about this tax increase. Nobody wants it. He said he will make it his
priority in two years if it passes to remind everybody who it was that voted for it. We have all
seen the 100 acre hay field turn into fifty million dollar homes and 50 acre hay fields turn into
apartment complexes in Tremonton. There is definitely not an income problem.

April Reese of Perry said they moved to the Davis Creek Subdivision a year ago. Everyone
knows how high home prices have gone up and considers her family fortunate enough to buy a
new home. She said they spend around $3,000.00 yearly on the real estate taxes. She said her
husband's income is higher than average, but they are struggling. She said they have made cuts.
They aren’t buying bread any more. She urged them to cut programs like the Bookmobile that
they will never use.

John Powell of Garland said he works a lot of hours doing construction and understands the
wages of the employees. He said by praising them for cutting costs is just them doing their job.
He said he is lucky to get a 1% to 3% raise annually. They have had to cut back so much. He
protests the taxes and the Bookmobile.

Michael Armfield of West Corinne stated he has never come to a meeting like this before
which creates a concern. If they are provoking folks to come and then sit back quietly, it is
concerning. He said he makes a fair wage. He said he lives in West Corinne and there have been
many years that his road hasn’t been plowed, so you are short staffed to cover 1,500 miles. He
understands the county needs to pay them. When he first moved to West Corinne, he thought
about working for the county but they couldn’t pay enough. He said he was frugal when he
bought his house buying something he knew he could afford. In the ten years he has been in Box
Elder County, his house payment has gone up almost $500.00. He said he makes twice as much



ey =,

County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

as his father did but does not feel like he prospers like he did. It’s not just the county, but adding

another increase to everything else is the problem.

MOTION: Commissioner Bingham made a motion to close the public hearing. The motion
was seconded by Chairman Perry and the hearing was closed.

Chairman Perry stated no decisions are being made at the current meeting and comments will be
taken under advisement. The decision will be placed on the November 19, 2024 Commission

Meeting Agenda.

Commissioner Bingham stated the Commissioners pay taxes as well. He pays taxes on two
farms and buildings and is not a fan of taxes. You would think that lots of homes should mean
more money. He spoke of a study on taxes and improvements. He said it costs $1.19 on every
$1.00 brought in for all of the infrastructure. For the rural part it costs 39 cents for every $1.00
that is taxed. Because there is more development, it does not mean it is cheaper or brings more
money in. The cost continually rises. You have more traffic, therefore more officers. He said
they are open to suggestions and understand that no one likes taxes. He doesn’t know the answer.
They will look where we can cut corners. Last year they cut 4% off the budget.

ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Commissioner Bingham to adjourn. Chairman Perry seconded the

motion, and the meeting adjourned at 7:16 pm.



County Commission Meeting for November 13, 2024

ADOPTED AND APPROVED in regular session this 4th day of December 2024

ATTEST:

L%@m?/cﬁﬁ\

Marla R. Yo g, Clerk

IR
1,
[

5

&

N
\\ .

2wy
A 4{’ I/«./«—"-’7

Lee Perry, Chalrman

Qo 1 / B

Boyd Bifigham, Commissioner

S tan Summers COIIIII’I]SSIOI’ICI'

-\..

10



BOX SPECIAL COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

ELDER Commission Chambers, 01 South Main Street, Brigham City, Utah 84302
COU NTY Wednesday, November 13, 2024 at 6:00 PM
AGENDA

NOTICE: Public notice is hereby given that the Box Elder County Board of County Commissioners will
hold a Special Commission Meeting commencing at 6:00 P.M. on Wednesday November 13, 2024 in the
Commission Chambers of the Box Elder County Courthouse, 01 South Main Street, Brigham City, Utah.

1. CALL TO ORDER

A.
B.

Invocation Given by: Commissioner Perry

Pledge of Allegiance Given by: Clerk Marla Young

2. AGENDA ITEMS

A.

B.
C.
D.

6:03 Presentation on Box Elder County Property Tax Increase for County General Fund-
Shirlene Larsen

6:08 Public Hearing for Proposed Property Tax Increase for Box Elder County-Shirlene Larsen
6:38 Presentation on Box Elder County Library Property Tax Increase-Shirlene Larsen

6:43 Public Hearing for Proposed Property Tax Increase for Box Elder County Library-Shirlene
Larsen

CLOSED SESSION
4. ADJOURNMENT

Prepared and posted this 8th day of November, 2024. Mailed to the Box Elder News Journal and the
Leader on the 8th of November, 2024. These assigned times may vary depending on the length of
discussion, cancellation of scheduled agenda times and agenda alteration. Therefore, the times are
estimates of agenda items to be discussed. If you have any interest in any topic you need to be in attendance
at 6:00 p.m.

Marla R. Young - County Clerk
Box Elder County

NOTE: Please turn off or silence cell phones and pagers during public meetings. This facility is wheelchair
accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive
services must be made three (3) working days prior to this meeting. Please contact the Commission
Secretary's office at (435) 734-3347 or FAX (435) 734-2038 for information or assistance.



/

Public Hearing 11/13/2024

Proposed Property Tax Increase for Box Elder County and

Box Elder County Library

Name Phone #
Jfﬂm /S nimear 35 - Fzp - 5P74
MANLHD (rockdX U2S - 224- <0\
W]Jw‘c/r@ Pﬁvu.,é() 436 -g12-953 5

G/ﬂna ﬁm /é‘r

Y3s 279 -75 38

YZ5 - %5057

g e

Sanvd A AR

3¢S 202 - €776

Povlu); iyl

135-764 2979

Jon B el 4726-9722~loi2
12 Phades W25 ABD-260F
Hopldvey Nelcon R R e
Lecry Blenzherd 435 734 -3g2¢
E}drreﬂ A ng0rae i ﬁ@alv 3q 4 ‘"D’%aft‘l
Corey DeMaw Boi - 3B9 -L846

\%ﬁdi Anderon 480.2M - 0443

Kad e N\Mgb\\ Up9 WO URH

\osw 770 Lt gl |45 20300
Doty e 43S - 274 -US(]

Yo C Bes 2 /7 =0/ %S I 7/

/vm/ SeP hn S Y35~ 452- 1339

Floyg FoeK

Y35 279 Y4

/\/\MPQV/M /\3/’%

67_002( (3 -\-‘rze-—'(

4 %“«7’M/ﬁ70’/7

Scmere [DuM=z
= )




\

Public Hearing 11/13/2024
Proposed Property Tax Increase for Box Elder County and

Box Elder County Library

Name Phone #
wm%ew@ééd—'—/ﬂ—z? IR —
Bl Aﬂ /é)nrp”/m on

PAM_ W T 435 7% #39
1//4/@ /// //gf;ﬁfarf‘/u Z22- /69
lonid Tafor” F(1-33 - 90
Awm/ﬁw 436 _232-4%0
Tian Tahgr BO\- H S - 40
Boaps Ao ms Yo/ 628-945F
( 0%y aims B0\ 624451
Dol Buloen 25 -7230 0078
&Jmiz‘j Foulsen K/ -F57-1607
Llpyd md Y25 452 03]
Tam Lpod s 452507
~Totur Hurd 4357 553501 5
Mk QUAJE:’.« A25-2719- O43%
W e Arunbield 25 333-2iL ]
g@bt SvLLO / } 670/ -0 X5
DY e Y28 o35 /1Y
Devele yles” Li35 - 452 ~1T4
KoL pifal el o/ - 37/)- o6 =/
ﬁ%oﬁv‘f\w\u\ i q\f\\_b\n 20% - 294\ ~ads
<+ev’ N %ceck 4357308073
“Jane™ 7B cock 435730 S OR3




Public Hearing 11/13/2024
Proposed Property Tax Increase for Box Elder County and

Box Elder County Library

Name Phone #
TWonale Slatr L H35-257-3577
R r . VECCT L35 220- 77/F
Tarere Aodreios [ 595 964176
(e K e 2505 $25-7.54- 5347
‘ N Z e, /{ﬂm/ 7;@/_‘,&15/ 2
ket 7« 4 . O 135 -230 /043

Ca,ﬂﬂv/[/lom 435- 44,5-5S 49
Soe Shinkin 435- 225 044 ¢
Jul ’tﬁ,ﬂ'mnk}é I~ AP ~LF )

Mk\r’u{ KJJM;LJAN\_,

435-279-R 127

; kh(fj/t:ﬁc\) rSei

(35 -23Y-33L0D

KQJ\/\ (Qk =4

W33 -73-3370Y

Vanjel ﬁzm@j

Y35 - 740 -064|

Keadeon A s

B Mo 435- 297 4327
Kldr Reese 0 02-822/56%

Poril Reese 0230 - (TS
Kl T 475170 -%

6\/%‘{ \San L\/n—g' K

§u$-720-4H%0 =,




